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PRATAP HOLDINGSTTD. ~

BOARD'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual report on the affairs of the Company together
with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the vear ended on 31 March, 2023,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR PERFORMANCE OF THE COMIPANY {Rs. in "00)
Particulars 2022-23 |  2071-22
Profit/ Loss for the year before taxation (3972) (4182)
Less: Provision for taxation - -

Current Tax |} — -
Deferred Tax _ = -
Profit/Loss for the year (3972) (4182)

DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for this year to conserve the resources for responding
to suitable opportunities in the future. Attention is already being given to identify projects/activities in
pursuance of above.

DEPOSITS
Your Company has not invited/ accepted any deposits from the public under Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS
There is no change in the nature of the business of the company during the Financial Year 2022-23,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITTMENTS

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company have occurred between the end of the financial vear of the Company to which the financial
statement relates and the date of this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
During the year under review, the loans / guarantees/ investments covered under the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the schedule during the year.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASS50CIATE COMPANY
As on March 31, 2023, the Company has only one subsidiary viz. M/s. Kanoria Securities & Financial
Services Ltd.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has in place adequate internal controls with reference to financial statements. During the
year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operation was observed.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. The Company not being a manufacturer company, the Companies 8(3) (Accounts) Rules, 2014
regarding Conservation of Energy and Technology, Absorption are not applicable.

B. The total Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the year ended 31 March, 2023 was Nil.



DETAILS OF PIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

There has been no change in the constitution of Board during the year under review 1. the structure of
the Board remains the same.

Mr. Biswaranjan Chakraborty (DIN: 00337341) retire by rotation and being eligible seeks re-
appointment.

NUMBER OF MEETING OF THE BOARD
During the year 2022-23, the Board of Directors met Five times viz. on 30% May, 2022; 13t August,
2022; 14h November, 2022; 21« December, 2022 and 13¢ Febroary, 2023,

CODE OF CONDUCT

In terms of requirement of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Company; it's Management Personnel and the Members of the Board have complied with the Code
of Conduct as laid down by the Board of Directors.

AUDITOR'S
i) Statutory Auditors
The Auditor’s Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, disclaimer or adverse remark.

ii) Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 24 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Company has appointed
M/s. Rohit Singhi & Co., Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the
Company.

As required under Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has obtained a Secretarial
Audit Report. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as “ Annexure 1",

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS ON ANNUAL BASIS

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Director of the Company
under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that the Independent Director of the Company meet
with the criteria of their Independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5)of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to Directors’ Res ponsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31% March, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

(ii) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent soas to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;
(iii) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv)The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial contrels are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(vi)The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively,

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
The Company has no employees within the previsions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014




FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

The Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its ewn performance, the Directors
individually as well as the evaluation of the working of all the Committees. Inputs were received from
the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board functioning such as adequacy of the composition
of the Board and its Committee, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties,
obligations and governance.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the
Chairperson of the Board, who were vvaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and
contribution, independence of judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority
shareholders, etc. the performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the
entire Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairperson and the Non-Independent Directors was
carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

LISTING WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGE
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed with the Calcutta Slock Exchange.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy which identifies major risks
which may threaten the existence of the company. The same has also been adopted by the Board and is
also subject to its review from time to lime. Risk mitigation process and measures have also been
formulated and clearly spelled out in the formulated policy by the Company.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’'S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacling the going concern status and company's operations in
future.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Company has a vigil mechanism policy to deal with instances of fraud & mismanagement, if any.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, associates, consultants and various
Government Authorities for their continue support extended to your company activities during the
year under review. Your Director also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their support and
confidence reposed in your Company,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PRATAP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Pratap Holdings Limited
(“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the standalone financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. We have
determined that there are no Key Audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’'s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
eitherintends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsibie for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are alse responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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s Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standal one financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A"
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. (A). As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2] of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
our separate report in “Annexure B".

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2023 on its
financial position in its standalone financial statements.

[

b
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b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d)

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:
« directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding
Party or

» provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under subclause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company and hence
compliance with Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.
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(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of
the Act:

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions
are not applicable as no remuneration is paid by the Company to its directors during the year.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the
Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.20100SE

Kedarashish Bipat
Partner

M.Mo.- 057903
UDIN: 2% 0S 3903 RGNV ED]I877

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023
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“Annexure-A"

ra h f al and R ory Requirements’ i our re
even date)

The Company has no fixed assets and Intangible Assets and hence clause (i) of para 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

(a) The company did not hold any inventory during the year.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in
aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any time
during the year.

The company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees during the year,
to which provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit deemed to be deposits during the year and therefore directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under in this regard are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

{a). The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities. We are informed that the Company's operations did not give rise to any
dues on account of Excise duty.

(b). There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ state
insurance, |ncome tax, Service tax, Customs duty, Value added tax, Sales tax, Goods & Services Tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31st March, 2023 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable. We are informed that the Company’s operations did not
give rise to any dues on account of Excise duty.

(c). There are no disputed dues in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Customs duty, Excise duty and
Value added tax as at 31 March 2023 which have not been deposited on account of dispute.
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There were no such transactions which were not recorded in the books of account of the company
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
income Tax Act, 1961.

(a} The company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or other borrowings from any lender
and hence sub clauses (a) clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender

(c) The loans were entirely applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained

{d) The funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes or vice versa.
(a) The company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments} during the year.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been
naoticed or reported during the year.

(b)No report under sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
auditors during the year

© There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the Company, to be
considered by the auditors.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause {xii) of the CARO 2020 Order
is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business
(b The reports of the Internal Audit for the period under audit have been considered by us in the
process of our audit of the financial statements,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its holding
or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
not applicable,

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934, and therefore sub clauses (b),(c) & (d) of clause (xvi) of para 3 of the Order are not applicable.
The Company has incurred cash losses in the Financial Year and in the immediately preceding
Financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. However, the term of
appointment of the outgoing statutory auditor expired at the conclusion of the last Annual General
meeting.
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(xix]  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other Information accompanying the financial statements of the
company, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion
that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date.

(xx) Provisions of section 135 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the
company.

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301009E

— J\
Kedarashish Ba

Partner
M.No.- 057903

UDIN: 22 SRR GVEDI T8 T7

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30™ May, 2023
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“Annexure-B"”

PRATAP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Re Financial Co nder Clause (i
ion 3 4 anies A “the Act”
for the year ended 31" March, 2023

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PRATAP HOLDINGS LIMITED (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone IND AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company'’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and. both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Chartered Accountants
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
aver financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/
b
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system ower
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of intermal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301009E

Kedarashish Ba
Partner

M. No.- 057903

UDIN: 23053903 D6V EDY 7877

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30" May, 2023



Pratap Holdings Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(T in hundreds)

Non-Current Assets
a) Finamcial Assets - -

i} Investments 4 111,015 111,015
[Total Non-Current Assets 111,015 111,015

Current Assets

a) Financial Assets

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 198 171
b} Other Current Assets &6 98 98
Euml Current Assets 296 269
Total Assets 111,311 111,284
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 7 25,760 25,760
b) Other Equity g 63,945 67.917
'otal Equity 89,705 93,677
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Short Term Borrowings 9 21,497 17,460
b} Other Current Liabilities 0 109 147
Total CGurrent Liabilities 21,606 17,607
Total Liabilities 21,606 17,607
Total Equities and Liabilities 111,311 111,284
Significant Accounting Policies 3 - r

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

As per our attached report of even date.
For §. B. DANDEKER & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
F.R.N: 301009E
T : ' Director

(KEEDARASHISH AT) DIN: 00337341 DIN: 00338631

PARTNER

MarbaE o (2

embership No. 057903 5 hals mon awes

Shabnam Parveen

Place : Kolkata Company Secretary

Dated: 30th May,2023
UDIN: 2305 J405 BEVER] 7877



Pratap Holdings Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 315t March, 2023

{% in hundreds)

INCOME;
I |Revenue from Operations =
o, [Qiher Income - :
L. [Totl Tncome (1) : -

IV |EXPENSES:
Employee Costs 11 1,770 1,680
Finance Costs 12 874 1,292
Other Expenses 13 1,328 1,210
[ |Total Expenses (IV) 3972 4,182
v [PROFIT/{LOSS) BEFORE TAX (11I-1V) (3,972) (4,182)
v1 [TAX EXPENSES
Current Tax - .
Earlier Years Tax - -
Deferred Tax : =
VIl |PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (V-VT) (3.972) (4,182)|

VIl |OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss F =
J(ii) Income taxes on items that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss p _

B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
{u]l Incume taxes on items that will be m:lassiﬁed to profit or loss

it e T TRETOF TAXES - .
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/LOSS) FOR THE YEAR TVIT
X v (3,972) (4,182}

[ EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE [Nominal Value of Share - Rs. 10]] *
Basic & Diluted 14 (1.54)
Significant Accounting Policies 3

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

(1.62)

As per our artached report of even date,
For 5. B. DAMDEKER & CO. For and on behalf of the Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 4
F. R N: 1{}1+.'N}9L
B. borty
Director
{KEI}ARASHISH DIN; (0337341
PARTNER
Membership No. 057903 gw P@_»f_@}".--"
Shabnam Parveen
Place : Kolkata Company Secretary
Dated: 30th May,2023
UDIN: 23 ¢0SF502R &V EDITET 7




Pratap Holdings Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

|Net Profit/{Loss) before tax & extra ordinary items: (3,972) (4,182)

Adjusrments for;

Trade & Other Receivahle - 5

Trade Payable & Other Liabilities (38) (241)

(38) (241)

Cash generated from Operations (4,010) (4,423)
Direct Taxes Paid - -
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) (4,010) (4,423)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Investments - =

Sale of Investments E -

Net Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B) - -

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Short-Term Borrowings

Loans & Advances 4.037 4,412

4,037 4,412
Net Cash from Financing Activities  (C) 4,037 4,412
[Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) 27 (11)
Cash & cash equivalents as at 1st April, 2022 171 182
Cash & cash equivalents as at 31st March, 2023 158 171

NOTE : FIGURES IN BRACKET REFRESENT OUTFLOW - -

As per our attached report of even date, For and on behalf of the Board
For S. B. DANDEKER & CO. (

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS /

e

F.R.N: 301009E ( )
— ? B. Chalkyaborty R. K. Kexi

e __‘% - Director Director

(KEDARASHISH T) DIN: 00337341 DIN: 00338631

PARTNER

Membership Ne. 057903 SW PWFEE""..--'

Shabnam Parveen
Place : Kolkata Company Secretary

Dated: 30th May.2023
UDIN: 22053463 BEVEDTTETD
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Pratap Holdings Limited
Statement of Changes in Equiry for the year ended 315t March, 2023

-

A. Equity Share Capital
Curremt Reporting Period (T in hundreds)
{.ﬂlnm in Hestated Changesin | Balance at
Equity Share | balance at the | equity share |the end of the
Capital due to |beginning of the]  capital current
Balance at the beginning of the current | prior period Current during the reporting
reporting period BITOrS reporting | ewrrent year period
15,760 25,760 25760
Previous Reporting Period (¥ in hundreds)
Changes iin Restated Changes in Balance at
Equity Share | balance at the | equity share |the end of the)
Capital due to |beginning of the capital previous
Balance at the beginning of the previous | ariar perbod previous during the reporting
reporting period errors reporting  |previousyear]  period
25,760 ¥ 25.760 - 25,760
E. Other Equiry
Current Reporting Period (¥ in hundreds)
&t the beginning of the current
reporting period 35,000 22,014 574 10,329 67,817
e in accounting policy or prier
EITOrs - - - =
|Restated balance at the beginning of the
jcurrent reporting period 35,000 22,014 574 10329 67,917
|Profit/Loss for the year 3,572} (3,972}
Iﬂd‘-ﬂ' Comprehensive Income| Losses) - = = - -
ITmI Comprehiensive Income 35,000 22,014 574 6357 63,945
at the énd of the Carrent
ing period 25,000 2,014 574 £,357 3,945
Previous Reporting Period {% in hundreds)

14,511

Changes in accounting pelicy or priar
period. errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the
|previous reporting period

35,000

21014

374

14,511

Profit/Loss for the vear

{4, BED)

(4,182)

Other Comprebensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

35000

11014

574

10,329

67.917

'iihmtnthmdm'thlpm
reparting period

35,000

22,014

574

10,329

67.917

Significant Accounting Policies : Note no. 3

See accompanying nodes to the Financial Sratements

As per our attached report of even date.
For 5. B. DANDEKER & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

F.R.N: 301009E CQ
I —

{EEDARASHISH AT)
PARTNER
Membership Nao. 057903

Flace : Kolkata

B barty
Direcror
DIN: 00337341

Diated: 30ch May, 2023
vone: 2508 3403 REVED T 7877

G o

Company Secretary




Pratap Holdings Limited -
Motes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

1. Company Cwerview
Pratap Holdings Limired (7 The Company ") is an Investment Company having its Registered office at 8, B.B.D Bag {East) Kolkara 700001,
The company was incorporeted on 11th October 1976, The company's shares are listed on The Calcunta Stock Exchange Limired({CSE).

2. Basis of Preparstion

2) Sratement of Complinnce

These Financial Statements are prepared (n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 {"'Act”) {to the extent notified) and
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured m fair values. The Tnd AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standlards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and adoprions was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101~ First ime adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards. The tramsition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generaily sccepred in India as prescribad

under Section |33 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP) which was the previous GAAP with Ist
April, 2016 as the transistion date,

Acconnting palicies have been consistently applied except where n newly lssued accounting standard Is initially sdopted or a revision to an
existing standard requires a change in the sccounting policy hicherio inuse

b) Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financizl statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is Company's presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is also Indian Rupess.

¢) Basis of measurement

The financial seatements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the acerual besis, except for certain Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities measured at falr value.

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asser or paid 1o rransfer a Hability in an ordecly transaction berween marker
participants at the measurement date under current market conditlons, regardless of whether that price is directly chservable or estimaned
using another valuation technique In determining the fair vilue of an astet or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or lishility if market participanrs would take those characteristics into acoount when pricing the asset or linbility
81 the messurement date.

d) Use of Judgments and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgéments, estimates and sssumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of ssses, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimares and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions o accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Critical accounting judgements and key sotrces of estimation uncertsinty: Key assumptions —

(i) Fair valoe mepsurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fair values of financial assees and financial labilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measired based on quoted prices in
active markers, their fair value is measured using certain valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are tmken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is nor feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volarilicy



Pratap Holdings Limited
Notes on Financial Staements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(if) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:

The certain key assumptions about the kelibood and magnitude of an outflow of resources. Provision is towards keown contractual
obligatien, lirigarion cazes and pending assessments in respecs of taxes, duties and other levies, if any, in respect of which management
believes thar there are present obligadions and the settlement of such obligations are expected to result in ourflow of resources, 1o the extent
provided for.

¢) Measuremenst of fair values

A mumber of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities, The Company has ah established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The
management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustmens.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in g fair value hierarchy based on rhe impurs used in the valuation rechnigues as follows:

= Level |: quoted prices (unadjusted) in sctive markets for identical assers or labilicles.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are obsérvable for the asset or liabiliry, either directly {ie. as prices) or
indirectly (ie. derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability thar are not based on observable market data (unobservable inpars).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or & liability, the Company uses observable marker data as far as possible. If the inputs used to
measure the fair value of an assét or & liabllity fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirely in the same level of the f@ir value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significamt to the entire measurement

The Company recognises transfers berween levels of the fair walue hierarchy ar the end of the reporting period during which rthe change
has occurred.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

A) Operating Cycle

All gesers and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cvele and other criveria set
out in the Schedule U1] to the Companies Act, 2013 and [nd AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements based on the nature of preduocts
and the time berween the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

B} Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to & financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
anacher entity,

i, Financial Assets

Initizl recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised Initdally at fair value plus in the case of finangial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or Joss,
transaction costd that are attributable 1o the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade receivables are initiaily measured at transaction price
Regular way purchase and sale of finamcial assets aré accounted for ar rrade date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, fAinancial assets are classified in thres categories:

= Amortised cost

+ Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT)

+ Fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, excepe if and in the period the Company changes its business
model for managing financlal assets.



Pratap Holdings Limited -
Nores on Financial Starements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Financial assets ar amortised cost
A financial aseer is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold the asset in order to collect
contracrual cash flows and rhe contractual resms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, The effective interest rate (EIR) amortisation & included in finance lneome in
the profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTOCT

A financial asser is measured at FVTOC If it 18 beld within a business mode! whose objective is achieved by both collecting contracnual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asser give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI catégary are messured initlally as well as ar each reporting date at fair value. Falr value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCT)

Financial assers at FVTPL
A financial ssset which is not clssified in any of the above categories are measured at FYTPL

Pinancial assets included within the FYVTPL caregory are measured o fair value with all changes recognised in the Stetement of Profit &
Loas.

Investment {n Subsidiary
The Company has sccounted for its investrments in its subsidiary at cost/deemed cost.

Other equity investments

All gther equity investments are measured ot fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those
equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value chenges in 'Other Comprehensive Income’. Howewer, in
limvited clreumstances, cost may be appropriate estimate of fair value. That may be the case if insufficient recent information s avallable ta
measure fair value, or if there & wide range of possible feir value messurements and cost represents the best essimare of falr value within
that range.

Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial ssset when the contracrual rights to the cash Mows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.

ii. Finaneial Uability

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial labilitles are initially recognised ar fair value plus any rrensaction cost that are atributable 1o the acquisition of the financial
linbilities except financial liabilitles at Fair value through profit or los which are intially measured at fair value,

Subsequent measurement

For purpnses of subsequent measurement. financial labiliries are classified in following eategories:
» Financial liabilities through profic or loss (FVTPL)

* Financial liabilities av amortised com

Financial liabilities through FVTPL
A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it s classified as held-for-trading, or it is.a dertvative or it is designated as such on inltial

recognition. Financiil liabilities st FVTPL are measured ar fair value and net gains and Josses, including any interest expense, are recognised
in profir or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other financial lisbilities are subsequently measured at amaortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecogmition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured ar amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the labilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amernisation process. For trade and other payables
maturing within one vear from the balince sheer dare, the carrying amounts approximates fair value due go the short matuchty of these
instruments.



Pratap Holdings Limited -
Motes on Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

Derecogrition

A financial lisbility (o7 & pare of a financial lishility} is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract s discharged or cancelled or expires,

An exchange berween an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantislly different terms ghall be accounted for 25 an
extinguishment of the origibal financial liabilicy and the recogninion of a new financial liabiliry. Similarly, 2 substantial modification of the
terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not anributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) shall be sccounted
for a5 a0 exringuishment of the original financial Hebilicy and che recognition of a new fAnancial lability.

The difference between the carrying wmount of & financlal liability {or part of 2 financial lability) extingushed or tansferred to anather
party and the consideration paid, incheding amy non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, shall be recognised in profit or lass,

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial lisbiliries are offset and the net amount presenied in rhee balance sheet when, and only when, the Company

currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends sither to settle them on & net basis or to realise the asset and
seqtle the liability simultanecusly,

C) Impairment
Impairment of financial instruments - financial assets
Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other then financials assets in FYTPL category.

Far financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected eredit losses for all
originated or acquired financial assets If at the reporring date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased significantly since its
initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lfetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases
significantly since irs initial recognition. The Company's trade receivables do not contsin significant financing component and loss
allowance on trade receivables is measured ar an amount equall to lifé time expected losses Lo, expected cash shortfall

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reparting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. For
impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each
CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows thar are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets
or CGUs. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is' estimated to determine the extent of impalrment,
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individua! gsser, the Company estimates the recoverable amounr of
the CGL to which the asset belongs,

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent. asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amotnt.
The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair vahue less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimared future
cashi flows, discounted 1o their present value using pre-tax eiscount rate that reflscts current marker assessments of the time value of
money and risk specific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed If there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying ecomomic benefits will be required 1o sentle the obligation and a relizble estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using ® eurrent pre-tux rate that reflects, when appropriace,
the risks specific ta the lability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as 2
finance cost.



Pratap Holdings Limited
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

E) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue 1z measured ar the fair value of the consideration received or recelvable,
taking into account contractually defined verms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government,

F) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognised In profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective inverest method,

G) Income tax
Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred e Current tax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or iiems recognized directly in equity or in 001

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or peid to the axstion suthorivies, based on tax
rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Defarred 1ax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assers and liabilities in the Financial Statements snd
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,

Deferred tax liahilities and assets are meeasured At the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the period in which the lishility is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
carrying amoumnt of Deferred tax liabiliries and sscets are reviewad at the end of each reporting period,

H) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period anriburable 1o equity sharehoiders by the weighted
average number of equity shares curstanding during the perind.

For the purpose of caleularing diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable o 2quity shareholders amd the
weighred average number of shares outstanding during the pericd are adjusted for the effects of all dilurive potential equiry shares,

[



Pratap Holdings Limited
Notes on Finsncial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(F in hundreds)

In fully paid up Equity Shares
Cuoted

Investments in subsidiaries- At cost
Kanoria Securities & Financial Services Limited 30,634 30,634
35,25,001 shares { 31st March 2022- 35.25.001)
shares { Face Value of Rs 10 each fully paid up)

Quoted at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Bagalkor Udyog Limited
17,30,000 (313t March 2022: 17,30,000) shares

35.831 35,831

Unquoted at cost

Bagalkor Cement & Industries Limited

197,300 (315t March 2022: 197,300) shares 1300 i

Tirupati Holdings Limited )
10,60,000 (315t March 2022: 10,60,000) shares 26,550 26,350

111,015 111,015

4a. Refer note on Other Equity Investments under Note 3 Significant Accounting policies. Due to the exceptional
circumstances therein described cost has been taken to be the best estimate of fair value for unquoted shares,



Pratap Holdings Limited
Notes on Financial Staternents for the year ended 31st March, 2023
(T in hundreds)

sh Equivalents
Current Account with banks 198 171
158 171

(¥ in bundreds)

ant Assets
Balance with Government Authority T o8
98 98

(T m hundreds)

g SRR

Equity § hare Capital
Authorised

3.00,000 (315 March, 2022: 300,000) Equity -
Jshares of Rs 10 each e o

Issued Subscribed and fully Paid-up

2,57,600 (31st March, 2022; 2,57,600) Equiry
Jshares of Rs 10 each Sl |

Issued Subscribed and fully Paid-up Share
|Capital 25,760 25,760

Ot of the above

1. 60,000 Shares credited as fully pald-up were allotted pursuant to an arrangement without payment in cash.

2. 1.20,000 Shares credited as fully paid-up were allotted to the shareholders of erstwhile Taxen Investment & Finance Bvr, Led in
terms of Amalgamation sanctioned by Calcutta High Cours by an Order Made on 10th July, 1991,

3. 15,100 Shares credited as fully paid-up were allowed 1o the sharehelders of erstwhile Jamadagni’ Finance Limited and Yashashvy

Finance & Properties Pvt. Ld. in terms of Amalgamation sanctioned by Bombay High Court by an Order made on 12th October,
1994,

a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the

beginning and at the end of the reporting

period

At the beginning of the period 257,600 25,760 257,500 25,760
Ourstandling at the end of the period 257.600 25,760 257 600 25,760




Pratap Holdings Limited

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote

per share.

¢. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

P

NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDERS No.of shares | "0 DOMBE R | o) e piares | % Doldingin
the class the class
Smt Vandana Kanoria & Mr M S Sanganeria 75,560 29.33% 75,560 29.33%
Harsh Investrents Ltd 39,791 15.45%) 39,791 15.45%
Asiatic Air-O-Gas Engg Co Ltd 62,354 24.20% 62,354 24.20%
Tirupati Screen Printing Co.Ltd 53,000 20.57% 53,000 20.57%
d. Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows
Shares held by the promoter at the end of the year c:/t:r?:;'t‘l?:
S.no |Promoter Name No. of Shares "S/ohgfr::tal
1 gglnt.g;;a;rrlic;ana Kanoria & Mr. M S 75,560 20.33%
2 |Shri Ajay Kumar Kanoria 16 0.01%
3 |Tirupati Screen Printing Co. Ltd. 53,000 20.57%
4 |Pradyumna Finance & Properties Ltd. 5,500 2.14% Nil
5 |Karnataka Quarries Pvt Ltd 12,475 4.84%
6 |Asiatic Air-O-Gas Engg. Co. Ltd 62,354 24.21%
7 |Harsh Investments Ltd 39,791 15.45%
8 |Pee Vee Ispat Pvt Ltd 4 0.00%
Total 248,700 96.55%
Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows
% Change
Shares held by the promoter at the end of the year during the
Year
S.no |Promoter Name No. of Shares ?hgfr::tal
1 :::.g:’nir:iana Kanoria & Mr. M S 75,560 29,33%)
2 |Shri Ajay Kumar Kanoria 16 0.01%
3 |Tirupati Screen Printing Co. Ltd. 53,000 20.57%|
4 |Pradyumna Finance & Properties Ltd. 5,500 2.14% Nil
5 |Karnataka Quarries Pvt Ltd 12,475 4.84%|
6 |Asiatic Air-O-Gas Engg. Co. Ltd 62,354 24.21%
7 |Harsh Investments Ltd 39,791 15.45%
8 |Pee Vee Ispat Pvt Ltd 4 0.00%
Total 248,700 96.55%




Pratap Holdings Limited

Nmm?inmdﬂﬁnmenufw:heywendedﬂathhmh.m

(% in hundreds)

General Reserve 35,000 35,000 35,000 = 35,000
Amalgamation Reserve 22014 22,014 22,014 22,014
Statutory Reserve 574 574 574 - 574
Retained Earnings 10,329 {3.972)1 6,357 14,511 (4,182) 10,329
Income = = - - = -
67,917 (3,972) 63,945 72,099 (4,182)] 67917
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(T in hundreds)

9 |Short Term Borrowings
!ﬂ-{r Unsecured Loan 21,497 17.460
21,497 17,450

(¥ in hundreds)

1] C iabilities
Other payables 109 147
109 147




Pratap Holdings Limited
Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(¥ in hundreds)

11 |EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salary Paid L7770 1.680
1,770 1,680

(% in hundreds)

12_|FINANCE COSTS

Interest Paid on Loan 874 1,292
B74 1.292

(¥ in hundreds)

Payment 1o Auditors :
- Audit fees 41 38
- Other Taxation and Certification matters 77 75
| Advertisement Expenses 291 290
Conveyance Expenses 250 180
Filing Fees 25 45
Legal & Professional Charges 25 235
Professional Tax 100 -
BMembership & Subscription 518 340
Miscellaneous Exps 1 7
1,328 1,210

14 |Earnings Per Share
"Weighted average number of Equity Shares
joutstanding during the year 257,600 257 600

MNumber of Shares considered as weighted average
shares and potential shares outstanding for

calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share 257 600 257,600
Frofit after Tax attributable to Equity Shareholders (3,972} (4,182}
MNominal Value of Ordinary Shares 10] 10]
Earnings Per Share {Basic) (1.54) (1.62)

Earnings Per Share {Diluted) (1.54) {1.62)




Pratap Holdings Limited
Notes cn Financial Statements for the year ended 31s¢ March, 2023

15, Operating Segments s

An operating segment is & component of the Company that angages In Dusiness activiies frem which it may ears revenues and incur expenses, including revenues
and expenses chat relate to tansacrions with any of the Company’s other compenents, and for whach discrete financial Information ls available, All operating
segments’ operating resules are reviewed regulacly by the Company’s mansgement 1o muke decisions abour ressirces 1o be allocared to the segments and assess their
performance,

The Company has only one reportable segment Le. [nvesting Acriviry and hence NI AS 108 Opersting Segments noe applicable to the Compary.

16. Related Party Disclosure
i} Name Hmmwmwmwdvmmmm:mﬂmm

Enterprist on which the Company has contral

ii} Mame of the other related parties with whom rransactions have tken during the year

s) Key Managerial Persons M. Ramesh Kumar Kejriwal - Director

Mr. Biswaranjan Chakraborty - Director

Mrs: Susmita hlajumder - Direcror
Mr. Ajay Kanoria - Direcror
Mr. Rehit Kumar Pandey - Director
Mis. Shabnam Parvess -Company Secretary
Mz, Sagar Shaw = Direccor

b}MmﬂPnryankmﬂm:bnh;:hyﬂm
(T in hundreds)

F

Kanoris Securities & Financial
Services Lud 3.250 3250
Interest on Losn
Kanoria Securities & Fimnclnllr

rvices Lid E73 71
Emﬂ:ﬂnﬂmﬂ
Mz, Shabnam Parveen 1770 1.680

Conveyance

Mr, Ramesh Kumar Kejriwal
Me. Biswaranjan Chakreborty
Mr. Sagar Shaw

e, Rohit Kumar Pandey
s Susmite Majumder

gl |
El&|E|8
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Notes on Financisl Statemengs for the year ended 31sr March, 2023

(T in hundreds) -

Hanora Securitles & Financlal
Services Led 14.640 10,603

17. Financial Instruments and Belated Disclosures
17.1 Fair values ve carTying amounts

Thlﬁhnhuufﬂnmﬁﬂmnﬂﬁl‘bﬂmu.mwhn-iﬂlﬂuqungmmthnmmnhemnfﬁnmdﬂpnﬁﬁuuﬁmmmﬂu
fiollows:

(% in humdreds)

Financial Assets

|nvestments in subsidiaries 30,634 . - E . 30,634 30,634
Other Equiry Instruments * - - - BOL3E1 BO3RY 80,381
Cash and Cash Equivalents 198 - . - 198 193
(Other Carrent Assets 98 - - - 98 98
Financial Liabilities

Shon Term Borrowings 11457 - - - - 21497 21,497
Cither Carrent Liabilities 109 = = - - 109 108

The falr values of financial assets and Lisbililes, together with the camrying smounts shown in the statement of financisl position of 315t March, 2022 are &

(¥ in hundreds}

|Financial Assets

|investments in subsdiarics 30.634 . - . - 30,634 30534
Cher Equity Instruments . - . 20,381 BO321 80381
Cash and Cash Equivalents 171 E : = e 17 m
Other Current Assets 98 - - - - 98 og
7 R

Short Term Borrowings 17,480 - - - - 17 480 17.460
Cither Current Liabilities 147 : - . 147 147
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Pratap Holdings Limited
Motes on Financial Ssstements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

17.2 Fair Value Measurement

“The fair values of the financial ssets and Habilities are incloded ax the smoun: st which the instrument could be exchange in a current transaction between willing
parties, orher than in forced or Hguidadon sale.

The Company has established the following fair value hierurchy that categarbes the value into 3 levels, The inpucs bo valuation rechnigues wsed 1o messure fair value
of financial Instraments are:

Level 1: The hierarchy uses quoted (adjusted) prices in pctive markes for idenrical assets of lishilifies. The fair valde of all bands which are traded in the srock
exchanges is waloed using the closing price or dealer quocations as &t the reporving date.

Level 2: The fate value of financial instroments that are not traded i an active market {for example traded bonds. over the counter derivatives) is determined using
valuasion rechnigoes which maximise the nse of obsesvable market data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimaves., 17 all significant inpurs required
1 fiir value gn instrment are shservable, the instrument is incladed in Leved 2,

Level 3: If one or mare of the significant lnpuons is not based on observable marker durs, the instrumens is included in Level 3.

17.3 Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial nstruments:
(i} Credir risk

(it} Liquidicy risk

(1if) Market risk

Risk management framework

The Company’s principal financial lishilities comorises of barrawings. and trade and ather payables. The main purpose of these: financial liabilities is to Flnance the
Company operations. The Company's principal fimancial assets inchude trade and octher recelvables, investments and cash and cath equivalents that derive directly
from its operations.

The Company's activitles expose it o 8 veriery of financial risks. Sncluding marker risk, eradic visk and liguidivy risk. The Company’s primary risk management forus
is 1o minimise potencial adverse effects of marker sk on its financial performance. The Company uses detivative financial insruments w mirigate foreign exchungs
related risk exposures.

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced malnly by the {ndividual characteristic of each customer and the coneentration of risk from the top few
custamers, The Company’s risk management assassment and policies and processes are esvablished to identify and anulyss the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriste risk limits smd contrals, and ta maniver such tisks and eompliamce with the same. Risk sssessment and mansgement policies and processes are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in markee conditions and the Compamy’s activities,

This note presents fnformation about the Company’s exposure o each of the sbove risks, the Company's cbjectives, policies and processes for messuring and
managing risk.

(i) Credit risk
Crediy risk is the risk of financial loss o the Company if 8 costames 67 COBREETPIY 1o & financial insrrament Fuils to meet it contracosal obligations.

i) Liguidiry risk

Liguidicy risk Is defined a4 the risk that the Company will not be able 1o settle or meer its ohligations on time or ar reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk
managemens implies maintsining sufficiens cash and marketable securities and the svailability of fonding through sn sdequare amount of credit facilities to meet
ohligations when due. The Company's finance ream is responsible for liquidity, fanding as well as serlement management. in addition, Processes amd policies
related 1o such risks are overseen by senior management, Management manitars the Company’s liguidicy position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected
cash fiows, The Company’s approach o managing liguidicy is to ensure, as far & pastible, that it will slways have sufficient liguidiry, subject to its restTuciuring
proposals. to meet its liabilltes when due, under both normal and seressed conditions,

hﬁnﬁmﬂ:hmmm&mny':mhﬂwmmbmm barrgwing or llundngwwﬂdbemﬁdemmmfth!mhmqmﬁrm operarion
with suppont of irs lenders-

Exposure to liguidiry risk
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financlal lishilities at the reporing dare based an eontractual wndiscounted
Py ImEnL.

(¥ in hundreds)
TCese than 1
31t March 2023 year 1-5 years »5 years Total
Short term Barrowings 21497 - - 21497
Liabilities 109 - - 109




Pratep Haoldings Limited
Naotes on Financial Statememnts for the yesr ended 315t March, 2023

(T in hundreds) -
~ [Cess than |
315 March 2022 year 1-5 years >3 years Total
[Shart term Borrowings 17460 = = 17 e
JI.i.'al'.!i.l.'llliu 147 . - 147

(11} Market risk

Markee risk is che disk of Toss of Fatare sarnings, fir value or furure cash flows thar may result from & change in the price of a financial pstrument . The valoe of 2
financisl instrument may change as 2 tesult of charges in the nierest rares, foreign currency exchange wtes, commaodity prices, equity prices and other market
changes that effect marker risk sensitive instruments Market Hek is atrributable 10 ali market risk sensitive financial inscruments including invessments and
deposits, farelgn currency receivables, payables and borrowings. The gaal of marker risk management s optimization of profir and conroling the exposure 1o market
risk within acceptable limirs,

(&) Curreney risk

Farcign eurrency risk ks the. rlsk impact related to fai value or future cush fows of an exposure in foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign

exchange rates. The Compeny's expasure tw the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily wo the import of rew materials and spare pans, and exparts
of finished goods.

Exposure to currency risk
The company it net exposed to any currency risk.

(b)) Interest rate tisk

Thirest rate risk is the thk that the fir value or futare cash flows of a financial instrument will fiocoate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company
exposure to the risk of changes in marker inrerest rares relured primarily to the Company's short term barrowing with floating interest rates. The Company
constantly monizors the credit markets and rebalamces its financing strategies ta achiave an optimal maturity profile and financting cost.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest Tare profile of the Company ‘s interest bearing financial instruments at the end of the reparting period are as follows:
(¥ in bundreds)

i L I

Fixed Hate Instraments.
Financial Assets '

Financial Liabilities 21,497 17.450
21,4597 17 A6l

Variable Rate Instruments
Financial Assets
Financial Liabilities - -

Semsitivity analysis
Fixed rate instruments chae are carried st amorised cost are not subject 1o imterest rate risk for the purpose of sensitive analyss.
The company does not huve variable rate instruments. 5o the compairy & not exposed to tnterest Tate risks.

¢} Equity price risks

The Company is not exposed to equity risks arising from equity invesomeris, Eiquity investments are held for stategic rather than rrading purposes. The Company
does nor actively trade these investments.

18 Capital Management (Ind AS 1)

The fundamental goals of capital management are to :

- safeguard their shiliry 1o continue as a going concern so that they can continie (o provide returns fior shareholders and benefits for other suakeholders, and
- maintain an optimal capical structure o reduce the cost of capital.

The Board of Directors has the primery responsibility to maintain & strong capiral base and reduce the cost of capital through prudent management of deployed
funds and leveraging epportunities in domestic and internaticnal financia] markers so as 1o malnain investar, creditor and market confidence and (o mstzin future
development of the business.

Far the purpose of Casmpany’s capitsl management, copiral includes ssued capital and all other equiry reserves. The Comparny mmqn'h capin] wroense in lighe
of changes in the economic and regulaigry envircnment and the requiremenis of the financial covenants The Company appiied the same cepizal nak maETegemEnt
strategy that was applied in the previous period.




Pratap Holdings Limited

Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31sc March, 2073
*The Company manages its capital on the basis of met debt 1o equity Tario which is net debt {total borrowings ner of cash and cash equivalents) divided by 1otal

EGUELY.
(¥ in hundreds)
Toelt {1) 21,457 [7 450
fCazh and Bank Balance 198 171
Met Debt 21,299 17,289
Toenl Equity 89,705 93,677
Fet Debe to Equlty Hato 024 018

i) Diebe is defined as Non-Current Borrowings, Current Borrowings-and Current Marurities of Non-Curyent Borrowings.

19 Financial Ratios

Neasons lor
Particolars Numerator |Fencminstor 3170372022 | % Variance e ::;:f
25%
TRrTeT Pl [0 fmes] LEE mpIliCes 0.01 0.0 10%
This ratio has
changed due
o increase in
J short term
‘i.‘.leht Equity Ratio [In tmes) Dt Equity 0.24 012 7754 |borrowings
Before
Interest
Debt Service Coverage Ratlo {in |Depreclaton |Outstanding
times) Jnnd Tax Dbt (0.14) (0.7} 138
TETurn on Equity TSR i LT Eq 30 -4, 4% 1%
THVEntory TUrnoVer Ratha HA
ra BCE Urnove
Ratio (in times) HA
TEaae Fayanics TUmmover Fatln
im times) HA
Wet Capital Turmover EELGRAT]
Eimes] KA
Tet Pront Hatio (in ) NA
fion Lap! ATl n EIGTE Uity and
%) ax Borrewlngs -3.57% -3.76% 5%
eners
from tnvested
Return on [ovestment [in %) |funds Investment 044 0% (%

20 Previous year's figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearmnged and reclussified swherever considersd necessary to conform to this year's classification.
Accordingly, smounts and other disclosures for the preceding years are inicluded 83 an integral part of the current year Financial Statements and are o be read in

relation to amounts and other disclosares relaring to the current year.

As per our armached report of even daze
Fer 5. B. DANDEKER & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

2: 3010098 ﬁp

[EEDARASHISH AT)
PARTNER
Membership No. 037903

Place : Kolkara
Dated: 30th May, 2023

v QIS F A0 DAEVEDT 7877

Far and on behalf of the Board
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-
B.
Director Di
Di: 00337341 DIN: (0338531
Shabnam Parveen
Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Pratap Holdings Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pratap Holdings Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company") and its subsidiary Kanoria Securities & Financial
Services Limited (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group"), which
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the consolidated statement of Profit
and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows Statement for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, of consolidated loss,
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAL and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are
no Key Audit matters to cimmunicate in our report.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled
entities.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: :

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.
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= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we report in respect of the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order that;

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) report on the financial statements of Kanoria Securities &

Financial Services Limited, subsidiary company incorporated in India, included in the Consolidated
financial statements,

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2] of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
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a) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group.

b) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

¢) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company incorporated in India,

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India to
or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:
* directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™ by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company incorporated in India or
* provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(if) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary company incorporated in India
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its
subsidiary company incorporated in India shall:

* directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or
* provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under subclause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company and hence
compliance with Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the remuneration paid
during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is incorporated in India to
its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid 1o
any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary which is ingorporated in India, is not in
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. f

/
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The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301009E

— _ cp?
I{edara;;ﬁat |

Partner
M.Mo.- 057903

UDIN: 2.2 0S FA03 B AV EDWK k119

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30™ May, 2023
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Annexure to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended 31st March, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Pratap Holdings Limited (“the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary, Kanoria Securities & Financial
Services Limited, incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by ICAI and the Standards
on Auditing. issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
staternents, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

ropriate to provide a basis for our
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India. have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2023, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For and on behalf of
S.B.DANDEKER & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No.301009E

M.No.- 057903

UDIN: 2305 1302 BEVEDK 41)9

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30™ May, 2023



Pratap Holdings Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(T in hundreds)

[Particulars 1 i [ A iy 1 As et 31

Place ¢ Kalkata

Dated: 30th May. 2023
UDIN: 2305 1402 BEVEDK L7)5

Company Sectetary

MNon Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment 4 19,271 19,271
Financial Assers
1iMon Current Investments 5 1.056,645 503,980
iijLong Term Loans and advances & 15,662 15,462
Deterred Tax Asset 7.716 -
I'l’ma! Non Current Assets 1,100,294 548,713
|Current Assets
Financial Assets
i} Current Investments 7 5310 9,006
ii} Trade Receivables B - 20,108
iii} Cagh and Cash Equivalents 9 44,099 55,165
iv) Other Bank Balances {other than [iit]) H 4,631 4,406
) Short Term Loans and Advances 11 309,851 1,472,382
Cither Current Assers 12 66,570 67574
Total Current Assets 434,461 1,688 641
Total Assets 1.543,755 2,237,354
Equity and Liahilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital I3 5,760 25,760
Other Equity 14 (11,181} 78,767
Tonal Equity 14,579 104,527
Nen Controlling Interest 15 (7.0800) 6,476
Liahdlities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i} Other Financial Liabilities 16 39,408 39,408
ity Long term Provisions 17 10,619 1,619
iii} Preference shares 18 370,000 370,000
Dieferred Tax Liabilities 19 - 1,240
Total Men Current [Habilities 420,027 471,267
|Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i} Short Term Berrowings 0 1,073,090 1,563,515
Other Current Liabilities 21 43,139 141,569
1,116,229 1,705,084
1,536,256 2,126,351
1,543,755 2,237,354
3
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements
As per our attached repare of even date. :
For 8. B. DANDEKER & CO. % | For and on behall of theBoard
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS | "
F.R.N: 301009E
gt 5{9 B R.K.
= Director D .
(EEDARASHISH BAPAT) DIN: 00237341 DIN: 00338631
PARTNER
Membership No. 057903 Stm.'lwnw ?ﬂ.‘mﬂfﬁ
Shabnam Parveen



Pratap Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31sc March, 2023

INCOME:

e {T in hundreds)

Revenuse from operations 22 66,529 B9 246
Cither [ncome 23 20,002 29,480
Total Income B6.531 118,726
Expenses:

|Employee Costs 24 1,770 1,680
Finance Costs P 105,796 102,934
Other Expenses % 5,154 4,493
Total Expenses 112,720 109,107
PROFTT/{LOSS) BEFORE TAX 26,189) 9,619
TAX EXPENSES

Current Tax - 2,104
|Earlier Years Tax 153 429
Deferred Tax - =
FROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAR (26.342)| 7.086
PROFTT/LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE NON- CONTROLLING

INTEREST (3,047) 1,466
PROFIT/LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
jcompany (23,295) 5.620
|OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A (i) Ivems that will not be reclassified o prafir or loss =
Jlii} Income taxes on ltems that will not be reclassified to profic or loss : =
B. (i} Ivems that will be reclassified o profit or loss (B6,118) 11.521
(1§} Income taxes on items that will be reclassified 1o profit or loss {8.956) 1.240
(77,162} 10.681

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTAELE TO THE NOMN

CONTROLLING INTEREST {10,504} 1,455
[9THER COMPREHENSIVE TNCOME ATTRIBUTARLE TO THE

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (65,653) 9226
mruﬂrmcnmnzﬂmsmmmﬂmm TAXES) {77,162) 10,681
Total Comprehensive Income/({Lass) for the year {103,504) 17,767
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE NON

CONTROLLING INTEREST {13.556) 2.921
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (89.948) 14,846
Eamings per Equity Share [Nominal Valee of Share - Rs. 10]

Basic & Diluted 7 (10.23) 175

| [ignificant accounting policies 3 |

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

As per owr attached report of even date.
For 5, B. DANDEKER & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTA

; E |

(KEDARASHISH BAPAT)
PARTNER
Membership No. 057903

Place : Kolkara
Dared: 30ch May, 2023

UDN: 23S ARGV ESKHTIF

B.
Director
DIN; 00337341

Sy K

Shabnam Parveen
Company Secretary



Pratap Holdings Limited
Consclidated Statement of Chenges in Equity for the year ended 31 March, 2023

Current Reporting Period (T in hundreds|

Changesin | Restated Changes in| Balance at

Equity Share| balance at equity | theend of

Capital due Jthe beginnin share |the carrent

to priar ullbl.-cu.rrznltr capital | reporting

poriod reporting | duringthe |  period

| Balance at the beginning of the errors period carrent
current reporting period year
25,760 - 15,760 - 15,760
Previous Reporting Period (¥ in hundreds)

Changesin | Hestated | Changes in | Balamce at
Equity Share] balamce at equity | the end ol

Capital due Jihe beginni share the

ta prior of the capital | previous

period previcus | during the | reporting
Balance at the beginning of the eTrors reporting | previous | period
previous reporting period period yoar

25,760 o 25,7 Z5.760
B, Cther Equiry
(* in hundreds)

Changes in acosunting policy or prce
|period exrors - . &
Restated balance at the beginning of
the curnent reporting period 35,000 4 321,782 W77 348, 9,126 78,767
ProfivLoss for the yeac - - - . {13255
[Ovher Comprehensive Income E . - - - 156.653:Ir (6,653
Total Comprehensive Income 35,000 2014 321,783 IETT i (sr4am| -11.181
Transfer o Sututory Reserve - - - 2 = - =
Balance as at 315t March, 2023 45,000 04| 3INTEL 39,577 @rzlan|  GrAaT) (11381

"hanges in accounting policy or prior
perind Errors . ] = s - - -

Restated halance a5 the beginning of
the previous reporting periad 45000 o] anze|  srsee| @Eszans) - 63,921
Profit/Loss for the year - = 3 5,620 - 5520
Oither Comprehensive Income - - - - |.756.00 9,226
Towsl Comprehensive Income 35,000 2004 321,782 37,300 {346,555) 9,226 TR,767
Transfer to Statulory Reserve - - = 2377 (2277 . -
Balance &3 at 31st March, 2022 35,000 204 R 39577 | (348,832) gns]| 78767

Sigaificant Accounting Policies : Note no. 3

See gecompanying nows to the Financial Statements

date,
For 5. B. DANDEKER & CO, For and on behalf of the Beard
CHARTERED ACCOLUNTANTS
F.R-N: 301005E

_\_\_-_'_‘_——_
(KEDARASHISH T) B, y
PARTINER Director
Membership Mo, 057903 TN 0337341 DIM; (G863
QW
Place : Kolkata Shabpam Parveen "--'-..“H’
Duatied: 30th May, 2023 Company Seceetary

voiN: 2205 G0 RE,VEDK UG



Pratap Holdings Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

et Profiv/(Loss) before tax & extra ordinary items: (26,189) 9,619
Adjustments for:
Securities Transactions Tax AR5 Do
Diividend Income (12,923} {3.373)
Frofit on Sale of Investments 1,561 {17,155)
Interest paid on short verm borrowings 105,796 102,934
Diepreciation - 95,319 B3.306
Oiperating Profit before working capital changes 69,130 92,925]
Aud justments for:
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Tnvestments 3,696 (4,552}
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Long Term Liabilities 0 20,000
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Bank Balances (225) (465)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables B0, 108 (80,108)
(Encrease)/Decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances 1,140,534 (661,665)
(Increase ) Decrease in Other Current Assets 1,004 11,183
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Borrowings (490,425} 583,005
{Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Liabilities ['-]E;:ﬁi}jr (242.047)
(Increase)/Decrease in Long Term Loans and advances {2000 3
636,062 (374,649)]
Cash generated from operations 705,192 [281,724)|
Diirect Taxes Paid 21,843 18,794
|Net Cash From opersting activities (A) 727,035 (262,930)
B. Cash Flow from Inwesting Activities:
Securities Transaction Tax {BBS) (200)
Dividend Income 12523 3,373
Profit on sale of Investments {1,561) 17,155
et Purchase/Sale of Investments {63&.782) (1694400
Met Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B) (628.305) {149,812)}
. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Interest pald on short term borrowings (105,796) [ 105,796) (102,534)) (102,934)
IMNet Cash from Financing Activities (C) (105,796) (102,934)
et Increase/{Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) (7,066) (515,676)
Cash & cash equivalents as at 1st April, 2022 5%,165 570,841
Cash & cash equivalents as at 31st March, 2023 48,099 55,165
NOTE : FIGURES IN BRACKET REPRESENT OUTFLOW -
As per our attached report of even date. For and on behalf of the Board

For 5. B. DANDEKER & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
F.RN: 301009E

"

(KEDARASHISH BAP
PARTNER
Membership No. 057903

Flace : Kolkata
Dated: 30th May 2023 i
upm: 22057902 BV EDK YIS

Director

DIiN: 00337341

Company Secretary



Pratap Holdings Limited
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

1 Company Overview

Fratap Holdings Limited (" The Company ") Is an Investment Company having its Registered office st 8, B.B.D) Bag {East)
Kolkata 700001. The company was incorporated an 11th October 1976, The company's shares are listed on The Calcutta
Stock Exchange Limited(CSE).

2 Basis of Preparation

a) Starement of Compliance

These Financial Statements are prepared in accordanice with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act’) (ro the extent
notified) and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and adoprions was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101- First time
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally
accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014
(IGAAP) which was the previous GAAP with Tst April, 2016 as the transistion date.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopred or a
revision o an existing standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

b) Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is Company's presenmtion currency. The functional currency
of the Company is also Indian Rupees,

¢} Bagis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for certain Financial
Assers and Financial Liabilities measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement dare under current market conditions, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In determining the fair value of an asset ora liahility, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characreristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

d) Use of Judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions thar affect the
application of accounring policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimares.

Fstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.




Pratap Holdings Limited E
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Crirical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumprions -
(i) Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment:
The Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end of each

reporting period. During the current financial year, the management determined that there were no changes to the useful
lives and residual values of the property, plant and equipment

(ii) Allowances for doubtful debts

The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability of rrade and other
receivables; The identification of doubeful debis requires use of judgement and estimates, Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful
debis expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

(iil) Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and fnancial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using certain valuation techniques. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible; a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk. credit risk and volatlity.

{iv) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies:

The certain key assumptions about the likelihood and magnirude of an cutflow of resources. Provision is towards known
contractual obligation, litigation cases and pending assessments in respect of taxes, duties and other levies, if any, in respect of
which management believes that there are present obligations and the settlement of such obligations are expected to result in
outflow of resources, to the extent provided for.

e) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of
fair values. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair values are cavegorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques
as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inpurs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asser or liability, either directly (ie.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

-Level 3; inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a lability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the
inputs used to measure the fair value of an asser or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair
value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which
the change has occurred,



Pratap Holdings Limited
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

3 Significant accounting policies

A) Operating Cycle

All assers and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule IT1 to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Sratements based on
the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents.

B) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

i. Financial Assets

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through

profit or loss, transaction costs that are atrributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade receivables are inidally
measured at transaction price. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade dare.

Subsequent messurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

+ Amortised cost '

+ Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCL}

+ Fair value through profit or loss (FVTFL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company chamges
its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets at emortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in
arder to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1 cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The effective interest rate (EIR)
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at FWVTOCI

A Financial asset is measurad at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value mevements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
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Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured ar FVTPL.

Financial assers included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement
of Profit & Loss,

Other equity investments

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except
for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in 'Other Comprehensive
Income’. However, in limited circumstances, cost may be appropriate estimate of fair value. That may be the case if
insufficient recent information is available ro measure fair value, or if there is wide range of possihle fair value measurements
and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifiss for derecognition under Ind AS 109,

ii. Financial lability
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial liabilities except financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss which are initially measured at fair value.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in following categories:
» Financial liabilities through profit or loss (FVTFPL)

» Financial liabilities ar amortised cost

Financial Habilities through FVTPL

A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial lizbilities at amortised cost

Other financial lizbilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. For trade
and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximates fair value due
to the short maturity of these instruments,




Pratap Holdings Limited -
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

D s

A financial Hability {or a part of a financial lisbility) is derecognized from the Company’s Ealance Sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms shall be
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability, Similarly,
2 substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it (whether or not anributable to the
financial difficulty of the debior) shall be accounted for as an extingwishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liabiliry.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial lability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred

1o another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liahilities assumed, shall be
recognised in profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial lihilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when,

the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
ot 1o realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

c) Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement

Ttems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes. after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its inrended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of those qualifying property, plant and equipment, which necessarily take a substanitial period of time 1o get
ready for their intended use, are capitalised.

A Fixed asset is eliminated from the Financial Statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Cost of the tangible assets not ready for their intended use at the Balance Sheet date together with all related expenses are
shown as Capital Work-in-Progress.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable thar the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred,
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Depreciation and amortisation for the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation on fixed assets are provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets, at the rates and in the manner
specified in Part C of Schedule 11 of the Act

The rates of depreciation as prescribed in Part € of Schedule 11 of the Act are considered as the mumimum rates.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as appropriate.

D) Impairment
Impairment of financial instruments : financial assets

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in
FVTFPL category.

For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses
for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increazed
significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as liferime expected credit losses if the
credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial recognition. The Company's trade receivables do not
contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life fime
expected losses e, expected cash shortfall.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any, When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in
use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rave that reflects
current market assessments of the ime value of money and risk specific to the assets.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the esumate of
recoverable amount.

E) Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to gettle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost.
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F) Revenue Recogmition
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured ac the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or
duties collected on behalf of the government.

G) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right 1o receive payment is established.
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

H) Leases

Leases of property. plant and equipment that transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. The leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The minimum lease payments are apportioned berween finance charges and
reduction of the Jease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets held under leases that do not transfer to the Company
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership (i.e. operating leases) are not recognised in the Company's Balance Sheet.
Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with general inflation.

I} Income tax

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current 1ax and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to 2 business combination, or iterns recognized directly in equity or in OCL
Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and lisbilities in the Financial
Sratements and the corresponding tax bases used in the compuration of taxable profic

sertled or the asser realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been ezmr:ted m‘ suhsta_ntimely enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabiliries and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting

period.

J) Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the pericd attributable 1o equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the pericd.

For the purpose of calculating dilured earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period arributable o equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effecrs of all
dilutive potential equiry shares.
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K) Principles of Consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the group is exposed to or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Consolidation of subsidiary begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Consclidated Financial
Statements from the date the Group gains the control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The Group combines the financial stacements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of
assets, liabilities. equiry, income and expenses. Intra-group transactions, balamces and unrealised profits on transactions
between group companies are eliminated in full. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred assets. Appropriate adjustments for deferred taxes are made for temporary
differences that arise from the elimination of unrealised profits and losses from intra-group ransactions or undistributed
earnings of Group's entity included in consolidated profit andd loss, if any.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events
in similar circumstances. 1f a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the Consolidated
Financial Staterments for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group
member’s financial statements {0 ensure conformity with the group's accounting policies. The financial statements of all
entities used for the purpose of consclidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the parent company, When
the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares additional financial
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent o consolidate the financial
information of the subsidiary, unless it is impractical to do so.

Non-controlling interest in the profit / loss and equity of the subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss and the consolidated balance sheet, respectively.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control; is accounted for as an equity transaction. This
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and noncontrolling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

In case the Group ceases to consolidate a subsidiary because of 2 loss of control, any retained imterest in the entity is
remeasured 1o its fair value. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purpose of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial assets. When the Group loses comtral over a subsidiacy, it
derecognises the assets, including goodwill, and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying amount of any non-controlling interests,
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity and recognise resulting difference between the fair value of the
{nvestment retained and the consideration received and total of amount derecognised as gain or loss attributable 1o the
Parent. In addition, amounts, if any, previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income in relation to thar entiry are
reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as would be required if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets
or labilities.
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Pratap Holdings Limited
Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
Note 4 Property Plant and Equipment

(¥ in hundreds)

As at 1st April, 2021

256,657

257,088

Additions

Disposals

Other Adjustments

- Borrowing Costs

As at 31st March, 2022

256,657

Additions

Disposals

Other Adjustments

- Borrowing Costs

As at 31st March, 2023

256,657

91

257,088

Depreciaton & Amortisation

As at 1st April, 2021

237,399

237.817

For the year

Transfer to Retained Earnings

Deductions

As at 31st March, 2022

237,359

237,817 |

For the year

Transfer to Retained Earnings

Deductions

Ag at 31st March, 2023

237,399

237,817

Carrying amounts (net)

As at 315t March, 2021

19,258

19,271

Asar 31st March, 2022

19,258

19,271

As at 31st March, 2023

19,258

19,271

1. The lease period of the fixed assets of the Company on lease has expired and these assets are in the possession
of the lessee but are carried in the books pending final settlement of dispute and recovery of lease dues from

them. In view of the status of the Company's leased assets, no depreciation is charged on the same.

=
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T in hundreds)
5 |Mon Carrent Investments
|Hame of the Compamy
Ins Fully puid up Equity Shares
Ouoted an Fair Value theough Other Comprehensive lncome
JENTOCT
|Bagalkor Udyng Limired
17.30.000 {315t Mareh 2022 17.30.000) shares 5431 A5.831
(Chemplast Sanmar Led
7700 (305t March 2022 Nil) shares I, 785 SEI1T
|IDFC Limited
000 {3 st March 2022 Nil) shares 15,78 12350
Indiahulls Reatr Estares 1
5,000 (305t March 2022; Nil) shares 1445 5052
Indsa Grad Trust A8 028
Poonawalila Fincorp Lid
B.200 {31s March 2022: Nil) shares 13,985 22,173
Powergrid Infrastructure Investment Trust 17306
Stec] Awthority of Lndis Lid
20,000 (315t March 2022; Nil) ghares 16,540 19,710
Tama Marors Ld
15.000 (315t March 2022: Nil} shares 21 S0 21687
Vedanta Limited
5,000 (3151 March 2023: Nil) shares 16,467 24.201
Unigapted a1 cost
Bagalkor Cement & Tndustries Limiced
| 97,300 (31 March 202- 197 300) shares 18,000 18,00
‘lirupati Holdings Limited
18,10.000 (31st March 2022; 18.10,000) shares 6,750 B6.750
Pradyumna Finunce & Propersies Lud
1,25,000 (31t March 2022 1.25.000) shares 12559 12559
Supertech Additives Lid
1.25.000 (31st March 2022: 1,25,000) shares 12539 12.55%
Samaresh lovestments Lud
35,000 {3151 March 2021: 85,000} shares 9925 0925
Mew India $hipping Lines Led
38,000 (315t March 2022: 38,000) shares 4560 4560
Asarco Invesments & Trading Co, Pyt Led
0,000 (3181 March 2022: 20,000) shares 1,200 1,200
Anchor Leasing Ltd -
62,000 (315t March 2022: 62,000) shares 7.008 7.008
l'!‘.nvm in Mutual Funds at Fair Valae theough OCI
|Hoec lers Shor Teem Fund-Regular Plan Gaowth -Nil (315t March
2022 203385.513 ) wnits - 14971
In fally paid up Non - Comulative Redeemakble Preference Shares
Iu smortised cost
Kav-Sec Brokerage House {India) Lid
50,000 {31sx March 2022: 50,000) shares 50,250 50250
Pradyumna Finance & Properies Lid
[5.34,600 (315t March 2022: 5.34.600) shares 53,187 53727
Superech Additives Lid
80000 (3151 March: 2032 50,000 shares 50250 5 250
1,056,645 503,980

Su. Refer nate on Other Equity Livestments under Note' 3 Signillcain Accounting policees. Due 10 the exceptiona]
circumstances fherein described cost has heen taken to be the best estmmate of fasr valuc for unguated shaees.

T in hundreds)
T

15,662 15462
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(T in hundreds)
’ Current Investments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Arvind Polyco Led (2.000 shares of FV Rs 10 per share) 147 147
Banswara Symtherics Ltd (4,050 shares of FV Rs 10 per share) 4.906 8602
Gremach CNC Lid (4,000 shares of FV Rs 10 per share) 152 152
Rajratan Synthetics Lud (9,000 shares of FY Rs 10 per share) 90 20
Tru, SHT. Lt (2,000 shares of FV Rz 10 per share) 15 15
5,310 9,006

# in hundreds)

Unsecured, considered good
Ouistanding for more than & Months
Others

Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash Balance - =
Bank Balance
In current accounts 48,099 35,165
48,099 55,165
@ in hundreds)
4,631 4,406

Short term Loans and Advances

Loans {others) 310,943 L 448,227
Advances{others) 1,000 4,250
Income Tax payments (Net of provisions) (2,092) 19.905

309,851 1,472,382

(¥ in hundreds)

Balance with Government Authority 2,997 2,788
Interest Receivable 63.573 54,336
Other Receivables = 450

66,370 67,574
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® in hundreds)
NQ S Selagala it i L2 )3/
13 |Equity Share Capital

Authorised
3,00,000 (31st March 2022: 300,000) Equity shares of Rs 10 each 30,000 30,000
Issued Subscribed and fully Paid-up
2,57,600 (31st March 2022: 2,57,600) Equity shares of Rs 10 each 25,760 25,760

|!ssued Subscribed and fully Paid-up Share Gapital 25,760 25,760
Out of the above

1. 60,000 Equity Shares credited as fully paid-up were allotted pursuant to an arrangement without payment in cash.

2. 120,000 Equity Shares credited as fully paid-up were alotted to the shareholders of erstwhile Taxon Investment & Finance Pvt. Ltd in terms
of Amalgamation sanctioned by Calcutta High Court by an Order Made on 10th July, 1991.

3. 15,100 Equity Shares credited as fully paid-up were allotted to the shareholders of erstwhile Jamadagni Finance Limited and Yashashvy

Finance & Properties Pvt. Ltd. In terms of Amalgamation sanctioned by Bombay High Court by an Order made on 12.10.94,

of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the
end of the reporting period
At the beginning of the period . 257,600 25,760 257,600 25,760
Outstanding at the end of the period 257,600 25,760 257,600 25,760

b. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share.

¢. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Equity Shares .
’ Smt Vandana Kanoria & Mr M § Sanganeria 75,560 29.33%) 75,560 29.33%)
Harsh Investments Lid 39,791 15.45% 39,791 15.45%)
Asiatic Air-O-Gas Engg Co Ltd 62,354 24.20%| 62,354 24.20%
Tirupati Screen Printing Co.Ltd 53,000 20.57% 53,000 20.57%
d. Discl of Shareholding of P:

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows

5

Smt. Vandana Kanoria & Mr. M S Sanganeria 75,560 257,600 |  29.33%

1

2 |Shri Ajay Kumar Kanoria 16 257,600 0.01%

3 |Tirupati Screen Printing Co. Ltd. 53,000 257,600 |  20.57%

4 |Pradyumna Finance & Properties Ltd. 5,500 257,600 2.14%

5 _|Karnataka Quarries Pvt Ltd 12,475 257,600 4.84%

6 |Asiatic Air-O-GasEg, Co. Ltd 62,354 257,600 24.21%

7 |Harsh Investments Ltd 39,791 257,600 15.45%

8 |Pee Vee Ispat Pvt Ltd 4 257,600 0.00% NIL
248,700 96.55%

Disclosure of shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows

Smt. Vandana Kanoria & Mr. M S Sanganeria

1 75,560

2 |Shri Ajay Kumar Kanoria 16 257,600 0.01%

3 _|Tirupati Screen Printing Co. Ltd. 53,000 257,600 20.57%

4 _|Pradyumna Finance & Properties Ltd. 5,500 257,600 2.14%

5 |Karnataka Quarries Pvt Ltd 12,475 257,600 4.84%

6 |Asiatic Air-O-Gas Engg. Co. Ltd 62,354 257,600 24.21%

7 |Harsh Investments Ltd 39,791 257,600 15.45%

8 |Pee Vee Ispat Pvt Ltd 4 257,600 0.00% NIL
248,700 96.55%
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(T in hundreds)
14 Dther Equity
Components
General Reserve 35,000 - 35,000| 35,0004 - 35,0004
Amalgamation Reserve 22,014 22014 22,014 - 2014
Capital Reserve 321,782 331,782 321,782 = 321,782
|Starutory Reserve 577 39,577 37,300 2177 39577
Rerained Earnings {248 83T (23,295) (3T2127) {352.175) 3343 (348.832)
Orher Comprehensive Income 9.2126 (66,653) [57.427) - 9,226 9,126
| 78,767 (89,948) (11,181) 63,921 14,846 78,767
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(¥ in hundreds)
Non- Conzrolling Interest
Balance as per last account 6476 3,555
Add; Ghare of Proft Loss for the year {13,556) 2,921
{7.080) 6,476

{¥ in hundreds)

Depasits 16860 16,860
Other Liakilities 22548 21,548
39,408 39,408

(* in hundreds)

s e

10,619
10,619 10,619

370,000 370,000

370,000 7.5% Non Curmulative Redeeniable Preference Shares of Rs |00 each are redeemable before the expiry of a period of e years from the date of
allotment i.e. | Bth March, 2002, subject to the option of the Company to redeern the same al any time afler three years from the date of allotment gither in
whode or in parts by giving three months' notice: The Preference shares are pending for redemption 1n sccordance with section 53 of the Compunies Act, 2013

¥ in hundreds)

19 Deferred Tax Liabilitles
Timing difference on Other Non Curment Investments - 1,240
1.240
(% in hundreds)

20 |Short Term Borrowings
Unsecured Loans from related parties 75,024 846,593
Unsecured Loans from ochers 008,066 716,922
1,073,050 1,563,515

(% in hundreds)

21 |Other Current Liabilities
Interest Payable 32,400 128,926
|Others Payable 10,739 12.643
43,139 141,569
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(T in hundreds)

Revenue from operation
Income from financing activity 70215 B4.654
Profiv{Loss) froen caplal murker cperstions (3,696 4,552
66,529 B9,248
(T in hundreds)
3 Cther Income
Cther Interest 2301 1,630
Frofit)| Loss) on Sale of ahares (2,855) 17,155
Profit/(Loss) on Sabe of Mureal Fund {Debre Fund) 1,298 1,263
Profit'{ Loss) on Speculation of Shares - {1,509
Frofiti Loss) on Derivarives 6,294 7,568
Dividend Received 12.923 33573
Treasury income F3 =
20,002 19,480

Jsalary Paid 1770 1.680
I 1.7 1,580
{T in hundreds)
25  |Pinance Cost
Interest paid on loan 105,796 102,534
105,796 102,534
T In hundreds)
26 Other Expenses
Payment to Aucitors :
- Andir fees 100 83
- Chther Taxation and Certification marcers 164 182 .

Advertisement Expenses T 567
Directors' Sitrimg Fees 200 180
Filing Fees 101 128
| Profession Tax 5 25
Legal & Professional Charges 1,302 1,141
Membership & Subseription 1,275 Ba2
Conveyance Expenses 3o 240
Securities Transaction Tax 85 500
Miscellanecus Exps x| 1595
5.154 4,453

Earnings Per Share
Weighted average number of Equiry Ehlmsl
putstanding during the year 257,600 Z57 600
Mumber of Shares considered as weighred sverage
shares and petential shares outstanding for calcularion

of Dilured Earnings Per Share 257 500 257,500
Profit after Tax attributable to Equity Shareholders (26,342} 7,088
MNominal Value of Ordinary Shares 10 10
E&miny Per Share {Basic) [HD.E8) 2.75

Earmings Per Share | Diluted) (10.23) 275
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28. Related Party Disclosare -

i) Name of the other related parties with whom transactions have taken during the year
a) Key Managerial Persons

Mr, Ramesh Kumar Kejriwal - Diirector

Mr. Biswaranjan Chakraborry - Director

Mrs. Susmita Majumder - Director

Mr. Ajay Kanoria - Director

Mr. Rohit Kumar Pandey ~ Director

Mr. Sagar Shaw - Director

Ms. Shabnam Parveen -Company Secretary
b} Relative of Key Managerial Person

1. Smt. Vendana Kanoria
2. Bhri Pranay Kanoria
3. Smt Urvi Sheth

c) Enterprise over which Key Managerial Person is having significant influence
1. Ajay Kumar Kanoria (HUF)

2, Ajay Kanoria Family Trust

3. Tanna Electro Mechanics Pyt Lid

ii. Transactions with Related Parties

a) Related Party Transaction taken place during the year:-
i. Loan taken & Repayment thereof

aj:m.a n:r ]\-'Iam'cs Pt 1.t

11,604

58,069

31/03/2073 88000 4065
3103720212 7,158 63,000 -194 44,044 11604
Smt Vandana Kanoria 31/03/2023 534,500 1,198,000 9745 1,742,245 -
31032022 185506 745,000 43,049 419,055 534.500
Shri Ajay Kumar Kanoriz 31,/03/2023 110,000 - 7353 117,353 g
31/032022 9,907 110,000 3,637 13,544 110,000
Shri Pranav Kancria 31/032023 50,000 - 55 50,055 -
31/03/2022 47,764 51,000 478 45,242 50,000
Ajay Kumar Kanoria (HUF) 31032023 111,069 - 7425 118.494 -
31032022 112,293 116,000 5.039 122,263 111,069
Ajay Kanoria Family Trust 31032023 29420 - 2,354 2,354 29,420
31/03/2022 3,231 30,420 389 4,620 29,420
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iii. Other Transactions:

(" in hundreds) =

[Ms. Shabnam Parveen 1,770 1,680

Conveyance

Nir. Ramesh Kumar Kejriwal
Mr. Biswaranjan Chakraborty
Mr. Sagar Shaw

Mr. Rohit Kumar Pandey
Mrs. Susmira Majumder

ZL|E|8]8]|8
SR EE

29, Disclosure relating to loans or security given by the Company as per the requirements of section 186(4) of the Companies
Act.2013 as on 31st March,2023.

[Particulars

.r'r r—'._"_.::'.::._

Williamson Magor & Co Ltd 240,000 Business | Within 1 Yiear
| Anil Limited 50,197 Business  ['Within 1 Year
Capriccio Tr&dil'li Pvt Lid 5.595 Buginess Within | Year
Tirupati Screen Printing Co Lid 14,131 Busineds  |Afier 1 Year
Kay-ser Brokerage House India Lid 1020 DBusiness  JAfrer 1 Year

30, The Consolidared Financial Starements include results of the subsidiaries of Pratap Holdings Limited, consolidated in accordance
with Ind AS 110 'Consolidated Financial Statements'.

These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) (to the extent notified)
and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values. The ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (lndizn Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended).

The Company has adopred all the Ind AS standards and sdoptions was carried out in accordance with Tnd AS 101~ First time adoption
of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles geneTally accepted in India &
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP) which was the previous
GAAP with 15t April, 2016 as the transistion date,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where @ newly 1ssued accounting standard I initially adopted or a revision
to an existing standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as currert or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria
set out in the Schedule 111 (Division 1I) to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nawre of products and the time between the
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle
as 12 months for the purpase of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
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31. The total comprehensive income has been anribured to the owner of the Company and to the non-controling interest even if this
results in the non-controling interest having deficit balance. Hence, the non-conteelling interest are restated and reclassified as per the

requirements of Ind-AS,

Pratap Holdings Ltd

32,071

63,043

Subsidiaries:

Indian

Kanoria Securities & Financial
Services Lud

{59331

444521

40,984

Minorty Interests in subsidiary

Indian

Kanoria Securities & Financial
|Services Ltd

94.41 )

(7,080)|

5.86

Total

100.00

7499

100.00

Puut:

Pratap Holdings Lid

TR |

Subsidiaries:

Indian

Kanoria Securities & Financial
Services Ltd

7335

(19:323)

141.24

9.30%

Minorty Interests in subsidiary :
Indian

Kanoria Securities & Financial
Services Lrd

1157

[3.047)

2226

1.456

[Total

100.00

(26,342)

10:0.00
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Parent:
Pratap Holdings Ltd - - = =
ubsidiaries:

Indian

Kanaoria Securities & Financial
Services Ltd _ 86.38 (66,653) 8638 9226
Minorty Interests in subsidiary :
Indian

Kanoria Securities & Financial
Services Lid 13.62 (1050900 13.62 1,455
[Toul 100.00 (77.162)| 10000 1068100

Pratap Holdings Ltd
Subsidiaries:

Indian

Kanoria Securities & Financial
Services Lud B3.07 [B5.976) 107.30 18,528
Minorty Interests in subsidiary :
Indian

Kanoria Securities & Financial
Services Lid 13.10 (13.556) 1692 2,921 -
Total | 100.00 (103,504) 100,00 17,267

(24.22)

32. Previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever considered necessary to conform to
this year's classification. Accordingly, amounts and other disclosures for the preceding years are included as an integral part of the
current year Financial Starements and are to be read in relation 1o amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

As per our attached report of even date. E‘\ For and on behalf of the Board
For 5. B. DANDEKER & CO. i
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
F.RN: 301009E 3 :
- D, .
= Director
(KEDARASHISH BAPAT) DIN: 00337341
PARTNER
Membership No. 057903 S\mﬂm - %.,mwu___.___..-ﬂ
Shabnam Parveen
Place : Kolkata Company Secretary

Dated: 30th May,2023
UDIN: 23057903 R GVEDK 4719
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